
NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting Executive Member for Education and Skills, Human Resources 
and Performance Decision Day

Date and Time Wednesday, 8th May, 2019 at 2.00 pm

Place Chute Room, The Castle, Winchester

Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk

John Coughlan CBE
Chief Executive
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ

FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website.  
The meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Filming Protocol available on the County Council’s website.

AGENDA

KEY DECISIONS

1. DEER PARK SCHOOL, HEDGE END  (Pages 3 - 20)

To consider a report of the Director of Culture, Communities and 
Business Services regarding Deer Park School in Hedge End.

NON-KEY DECISIONS

2. PROPOSED OPENING OF RESOURCE PROVISION FOR PUPILS 
WITH COMPLEX SOCIAL, EMOTIONAL AND MENTAL HEALTH 
DIFFICULTIES AT CRESTWOOD SCHOOL  (Pages 21 - 26)

To consider a report of the Director of Children’s Services regarding the 
proposed opening of resources provision for pupils with complex, social, 
emotional and mental health difficulties at Crestwood School.
 

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:
On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.

Public Document Pack



ABOUT THIS MEETING:
The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the 
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require 
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for 
assistance.

County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by 
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in 
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County 
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses.

mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Decision Report

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Education and Skills, Human Resources 
and Performance

Date: 8 May 2019

Title: Deer Park School, Hedge End

Report From: Director of Culture, Communities and Business Services

Contact name: Steve Clow

Tel: 01962 847858 Email: steve.clow@hants.gov.uk

Purpose of this Report
1 The purpose of this report is to seek spend approval to the project proposals 

for Deer Park School at the total cost of £21,266,000.

Recommendations
2 That the Executive Member for Education and Skills, Human Resources and 

Performance grants spend approval to the project proposals for Deer Park 
School at the total cost of £21,266,000.

Executive Summary 
3 Deer Park School is a new 7-form entry secondary Free School, being 

procured and delivered by Hampshire County Council on behalf of the 
Department for Education (DfE) as part of the national Free Schools 
programme. The County Council has been commissioned by the DfE to 
oversee the design and building of a number of central government funded 
Free School projects through an arrangement referred to as “Local Delivery”. 
This enables the County Council to hold significant control over the process 
and product which is of benefit to the pupils and staff who occupy these 
schools. The funding envelope is very restricted but HCC Property Services 
are investing time and skills to maintain quality as much as is possible.

4 The school is required to meet the forecast increase in secondary pupil 
numbers for the Botley and Hedge End area, together with the anticipated 
demand for secondary school places arising from the new homes to be built 
as part of the Uplands Farm Estate development. Accommodating 1050 
pupils aged 11 – 16 years, it will have 7 forms of entry and is planned to open 
in September 2021. The school site has been master-planned to enable the 
school to be expanded to 9 forms of entry in the future

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



5 The school is to be an academy run by the Wildern Academy Trust which was 
selected by the DfE in a competitive process. The County Council will 
continue to work in partnership with the academy to provide the best learning 
environment possible within the legislative framework for the benefit of the 
pupils and local community.

6 The new school is to be located on land owned by the County Council 
between Hedge End and Botley, within the County Council’s proposed 
residential development of the Uplands Farm Estate. The school and the 
residential development are the subject of a combined Regulation 4 planning 
application to Eastleigh Borough Council. A resolution to grant planning 
permission was achieved in January of this year, with full permission being 
subject to a number of conditions. Officers are working through these with the 
Local Planning Authority.

7 The school site will be leased to the Wildern Academy Trust for 125 years, as 
required by the DfE, subject to a lease premium of £950,000 to be paid to the 
County Council by the DfE. 

8 Funded by the DfE and developers’ contributions previously secured by the 
Council, the estimated cost of the new school is £21,266,000. Once planning 
permission is obtained, a Works Funding Agreement and a Development 
Agreement will be agreed with the DfE confirming their formal approval to 
their funding and granting authority to the County Council to let the 
construction contract. 

9 The building will have a number of significant environmental features including 
a substantial photovoltaic array on the roof and recycling of the “grey water” to 
use rainwater for suitable uses to reduce the volume of fresh mains water 
consumed. The County Council worked in partnership with Eastleigh Borough 
Council, the planning authority for this school, to ensure the DfE funded these 
initiatives which will reduce running costs and carbon consumption.

Background 
7 The project is included in the Children Services Capital Programme approved 

at the Executive Member Lead Member for Children’s Services Decision Day 
on 15 January 2018, which outlined the indicative available budget for the 
project. The project is programmed to start in the 2019/20 financial year and 
this was approved by full council in February 2019.

8 The school has been commissioned by the DfE following a successful bid by 
the Wildern Academy Trust to open a new Free School and the building is 
being delivered on behalf of the DfE by the County Council. The project is 
funded by the DfE Free Schools programme, together with developer 
contributions obtained by the County Council through Section106 Planning 
Agreements from several residential developments in the local area.

Page 4



9 The school is required to meet the forecast increase in secondary pupil 
numbers for the Botley and Hedge End area, together with the anticipated 
demand for secondary school places arising from the new homes to be built 
as part of the Uplands Farm Estate development. Accommodating 1050 
pupils aged 11 – 16 years, it will have 7 forms of entry and is planned to open 
in September 2021. The school site has been master-planned to enable the 
school to be expanded to 9 forms of entry in the future.

10 The Uplands Farm Estate is being brought forward by the County Council for 
residential development at the request of Eastleigh Borough Council in 
support of its housing strategy and draft Local Plan.

11 The access roads and services infrastructure required to support this 
development and the school, together with the initial phases of the adjacent 
new Botley bypass, are to be funded and delivered by the County Council and 
will be the subject of separate reports later this year to the Executive Member 
for Policy and Resources and the Executive Member for Environment and 
Transport. 

12 The County Council is working as a “local delivery” partner with the DfE to 
bring forward and implement this project.  The design concept for the new 
school has been developed by the Hampshire County Council’s Property 
Services team in accordance with the requirements set by the DfE. The 
design has subsequently been adopted by a contractor appointed through the 
DfE’s National Contractor Framework, as required by the DfE’s Free Schools 
design and build procurement process, with oversight and advice from the 
County Council’s Property Services team.

Page 5



Finance 
13 Capital Expenditure:

The Capital Expenditure has already been approved in principle by the 
County Council, subject to the DfE’s formal funding approval. The following 
table outlines the breakdown of its distribution across the project:

Capital Expenditure Current Estimate
 £’000

Capital Programme 
   £’000

Buildings 21,009 18,438

Fees 257 3,042

Total 21,266 21,480

14 Sources of Funding:

Financial Provision for Total 
Scheme

Buildings
£’000

Fees
£’000

Total Cost
£’000

1. From Own Resources

a) Capital Programme (as above*) n/a n/a n/a

2. From Other Resources

a) DfE Grant and Developer 
Contributions

21,009** 257*** 21,266

Total 21,009 257 21,266

* not applicable, as DfE funded 
** includes Contractor’s design fees and inflation
*** DfE Project Delivery grant to HCC Property Services

i. Building Cost: 
Net Cost =  £2,028 per m2

Gross Cost = £2,610 per m2

Cost Per Pupil Place = £20,000

ii. Furniture & Equipment:
Included in the above figures is an allocation of approximately £998,000 for 
the provision of all loose furniture, fittings, equipment and I.T. (inclusive of 
fees).

Page 6



Details of Site and Infrastructure
15 The school site is situated within the land parcel of the Uplands Farm Estate 

that lies west of Woodhouse Lane.

16 The proposed residential development of this land holding comprises some 
600 units and a local centre. The school site is by far the largest community 
facility and is located at the centre of this development, fronting a proposed 
public open space and ‘village square’.

17 The school site is approximately 9.8 hectares of farmland, gently sloping 
down to a stream that bisects the site east-west within a line of protected 
mature woodland designated as a Site Important for Nature Conservation 
(SINC).

18 Vehicular access to the school will be by the new public adopted roads to be 
built to serve the new development. These will connect to the new Botley 
bypass, including a new roundabout, located on the alignment of the existing 
Woodhouse Lane. The local road network within the development has been 
designed to facilitate a limited amount of pupil drop-off and pick up, whilst 
recognising that the majority of pupils will walk or cycle to school.

19 Pedestrian and cycling routes into the development are also proposed as 
part of the wider infrastructure work, connecting to routes to the new school 
from the surrounding pupil catchment area. This will include a safe route to 
the school site from the neighbouring town of Botley as well as footway 
widening of the nearby bridge over the railway to accommodate the 
predicted numbers of pupils at peak times.

20 The school will be connected to the services infrastructure of the new 
development, which has been sized to accommodate the future expansion of 
the school. While the mains drainage infrastructure is being built as part of 
the development, the school will be connected to its own sewage treatment 
plant, enabling it to be temporarily independent of the mains drainage 
network during this development phase. 

 
Scope of the Project
21 The Deer Park School project comprises the construction of the main school 

building, a sports building, car parking, external social spaces, a multi-use 
games area and grassed sports pitches. 

22 The project also includes the construction of a temporary haul road, to 
enable the school contractor to access the school site from Woodhouse 
Lane until the permanent access roads within the new development are 
completed.  A school contractor’s compound will be established adjacent to 
the new school site. 

Page 7



The Proposed Buildings 
23 The main school building comprises:

 26 general teaching classrooms

 20 specialist teaching classrooms (art, science, technology, music)

 Special educational needs and disabilities support rooms

 A learning resource centre

 Assembly hall and adjacent drama studio

 Dining Hall and adjacent kitchen

 Staff and administration offices

 Pupil and staff toilets

24 The sports building comprises:

 A 4-court sports hall

 Activity studio

 Changing facilities

 A staff office
25 The main school building is a rectangular compact form of three storeys, with 

teaching accommodation surrounding the larger volumes of the dining hall, 
assembly hall and drama studio located in the centre of the floor plan. The 
three-storey dining hall is top-lit by rooflights that bring natural light into the 
heart of the building, while glazed ends to the corridors ensure the views out 
provide orientation within the circulation areas.

26 The sports building is a similarly compact form of two storeys, located away 
from the main school building towards the woodland and the sports pitches 
beyond. Between the main school building and the sports building a site has 
been identified for the construction of an additional teaching block to enable 
the school to expand to 9 forms of entry in the future if required.

27 The buildings are finished externally in brick cladding, with aluminium 
windows, doors and rooflights.  The roofs are constructed with a high-
performance roof covering and parapet walls in brick cladding to match that 
of the external walls. 

Page 8



External Works
28 The external works comprise:

 Hard-paved social areas, with some seating and a covered area for 
external dining.

 Grassed social areas, with some tree planting

 Swales for surface water drainage attenuation.

 A car park for staff and visitors, including accessible spaces

 Covered pupil cycle stores

 A multi-use games area, with 3 netball courts and floodlighting

 Soft landscaping, including planting to create a ‘buffer’ zone to the 
edges of the woodland SINC.

 A pedestrian boardwalk bridge through the woodland SINC, providing 
access over the stream to the sports pitches

 Grassed sports pitches, including a 400m running track

Planning
29 A ‘hybrid’ Regulation 4 planning application has been submitted to Eastleigh 

Borough Council, combining an outline planning application for the 
residential development of the Woodhouse Lane site with a detailed 
planning application for the school, the first phase of the development’s 
access roads and certain elements of the new bypass.

30 A ‘resolution to grant’ planning permission for this application was 
determined by the Borough Council’s planning committee on 28 January 
2019, subject to a number of conditions which are now being progressed.

31 These conditions include an obligation within the Section 106 Agreement for 
the development for the County Council to seek to enable the 
implementation of further enhancements to the proposed school sports 
facilities for community use. These works are anticipated to be the subject of 
a further Regulation 4 planning application to Eastleigh Borough Council and 
a separate project appraisal report to this Executive Member in due course.

Building Management 

32 Under the proposed lease the Wildern Academy Trust will be responsible for 
the repair, maintenance and insurance responsibilities for the school site and 
buildings.

Page 9



Professional Resources

33 The County Council’s Property Services team have undertaken a strategic 
planning role to direct and oversee the early stages of the development of 
this project to date. 

34 In addition, the DfE have appointed Hampshire County Council’s Property 
Services as Technical Advisor and Project Manager for the procurement and 
implementation of the project on their behalf.  

35 The County Council have appointed Kier Construction Ltd for pre-
construction services through the DfE National Contractors’ Framework, in 
accordance with the DfE requirements for the use of a Design and Build 
contract. Kier Construction Ltd have their own consultant team who have 
developed the design for the planning application and construction as 
directed by the County Council’s Property Services team. 

Consultation and Equalities

36 The following have been consulted during the development of this project. 
Refer also Appendix A:

Department for Education (DfE)
Wildern Academy Trust 
Hampshire County Council - Children’s Services
Hampshire County Council - Economy, Transport and Environment
Executive Lead Member for Children’s Services
Councillor Rupert Kyrle - Member for Botley and Hedge End North
Local Residents, as part of the planning consultation for the wider 
development
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Botley Parish Council
Hedge End Parish Council
Hampshire County Council Fire Officer
Hampshire County Council Access Officer

Risk and Impact Issues
37 Fire Risk Assessment

Deer Park School has been commissioned by the DfE, who do not require 
sprinklers to be fitted as a standard requirement, and on completion the 
building will be the responsibility of Wildern Academy Trust. As such it is 
therefore not subject to Hampshire County Council’s fire sprinkler risk 
assessment. 

The appointed Design and Build contractor has selected to design the 
building, in respect to fire safety design and management, in accordance 

Page 10



with BS 9999-2017. Using this British Standard, the contractor has 
determined that sprinklers are not required to meet the statutory minimum 
requirements of the Building Regulations and achieve compliance with 
Approved Document Part B and the DfE’s Services Output Specification.  

The building does not include the use of any aluminium composite materials.

Health and Safety
38 Design risk assessments, pre-construction health & safety information and a 

Health & Safety File will be produced in accordance with the Construction 
Design and Management Regulations for the proposed scheme.

Climate Change
39 The project will incorporate the following features to reduce energy 

consumption and mitigate the impact of climate change:

 A large photovoltaic array located on the roof of the main school 
building

 A rainwater harvesting system serving the toilet-flushing system, 
together with low water consumption taps and toilets. 

 Exposed concrete soffits to support energy conservation through a 
night-time cooling strategy

 Swales to provide a Sustainable Urban Drainage System (SUDS) that 
attenuates the surface water run-off into the stream within the SINC.

 Improvements to the local footpath and cycleway network to encourage 
pupils to walk and cycle to school and minimise car usage. 

 A site waste management plan to ensure the principles of minimising 
waste are maintained during construction.

40 It will also include the following sustainability features to reduce its impact on 
the SINC:

 A boardwalk bridge that provides controlled access through the 
woodland SINC, minimising its environmental impact. 

 Soft landscape planting and fencing to create a ‘buffer zone’ either side 
of the woodland SINC, to enhance the protection of its ecology and 
support biodiversity.

 A construction environmental management plan to ensure the ecology 
of the SINC is protected during construction.

Page 11



REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic
growth and prosperity:

Yes

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent
lives:

Yes

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment:

Yes

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities:

Yes

Other Significant Links
Links to previous Member decisions:
Title Date
 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 12



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:

1. Equality Duty
The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 

conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it. 

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 

sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic;

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it;

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionally low.

2. Equalities Impact Assessment
Please see below

Page 13



Appendix A

FEEDBACK FROM CONSULTEES:

OTHER EXECUTIVE MEMBERS:

Executive 
Member & 
Portfolio

Reason for 
Consultation

Date 
Consulted

Response:

Councillor Keith 
Mans, 
Executive Lead 
Member for 
Children’s 
Services

Portfolio Holder 26.09.18

OTHER FORMAL CONSULTEES:

Member/ 
Councillor

Reason for 
Consultation

Date 
Consulted

Response:

Councillor 
Rupert Kyrle 

Local Member for 
Botley and Hedge 
End North

21.09.17

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r

UP
 T

O
RO

OF

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r
Ro

of
lig

ht
s o

ve
r

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r
Ro

of
lig

ht
s o

ve
r

Rooflights over

Basic Teaching

LRC

Non-Net Area

Staff & Administration

Teaching/ Non Teaching Storage

Void

KEY

NORTH

0 5 10 m 20 m

View scale 1:200

PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE

© Stride Treglown Limited 2017

SUITABILITY STATUS

@ A1

REVISION

REVISED BY

CHECKED BY

DRAWING NUMBER

Responsibility is not accepted for errors made by others in scaling from this drawing.
All construction information should be taken from figured dimensions only.

0mm 100mm50mm

PLANNINGPL :

www.stridetreglown.com

CLIENT

ORIGINATOR NO

 1 : 200

P29

DEER PARK SCHOOL
Wildern Academy Trust
Woodhouse Lane
Botley

Main Building - First and Second Floor Plans

FR

SB

151436

KIER CONSTRUCTION

151436-STL-01-ZZ-DR-A-ZZZZ-01002

 1 : 200
First Floor Plan

 1 : 200
Second Floor Plan

STATUS REV DATE DESCRIPTION

PL P1 18/01/18 Draft Planning submission
PL P29 27/04/18 Issued for Planning

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r

UP
 T

O
RO

OF

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r
Ro

of
lig

ht
s o

ve
r

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r
Ro

of
lig

ht
s o

ve
r

Rooflights over

Basic Teaching

LRC

Non-Net Area

Staff & Administration

Teaching/ Non Teaching Storage

Void

KEY

NORTH

0 5 10 m 20 m

View scale 1:200

PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE

© Stride Treglown Limited 2017

SUITABILITY STATUS

@ A1

REVISION

REVISED BY

CHECKED BY

DRAWING NUMBER

Responsibility is not accepted for errors made by others in scaling from this drawing.
All construction information should be taken from figured dimensions only.

0mm 100mm50mm

PLANNINGPL :

www.stridetreglown.com

CLIENT

ORIGINATOR NO

 1 : 200

P29

DEER PARK SCHOOL
Wildern Academy Trust
Woodhouse Lane
Botley

Main Building - First and Second Floor Plans

FR

SB

151436

KIER CONSTRUCTION

151436-STL-01-ZZ-DR-A-ZZZZ-01002

 1 : 200
First Floor Plan

 1 : 200
Second Floor Plan

STATUS REV DATE DESCRIPTION

PL P1 18/01/18 Draft Planning submission
PL P29 27/04/18 Issued for Planning

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r

UP
 T

O
RO

OF

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r
Ro

of
lig

ht
s o

ve
r

Ro
of

lig
ht

s o
ve

r
Ro

of
lig

ht
s o

ve
r

Rooflights over

Basic Teaching

LRC

Non-Net Area

Staff & Administration

Teaching/ Non Teaching Storage

Void

KEY

NORTH

0 5 10 m 20 m

View scale 1:200

PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE

© Stride Treglown Limited 2017

SUITABILITY STATUS

@ A1

REVISION

REVISED BY

CHECKED BY

DRAWING NUMBER

Responsibility is not accepted for errors made by others in scaling from this drawing.
All construction information should be taken from figured dimensions only.

0mm 100mm50mm

PLANNINGPL :

www.stridetreglown.com

CLIENT

ORIGINATOR NO

 1 : 200

P29

DEER PARK SCHOOL
Wildern Academy Trust
Woodhouse Lane
Botley

Main Building - First and Second Floor Plans

FR

SB

151436

KIER CONSTRUCTION

151436-STL-01-ZZ-DR-A-ZZZZ-01002

 1 : 200
First Floor Plan

 1 : 200
Second Floor Plan

STATUS REV DATE DESCRIPTION

PL P1 18/01/18 Draft Planning submission
PL P29 27/04/18 Issued for Planning

Basic Teaching

Large Spaces

LRC

Non-Net Area

Staff & Administration

Teaching/ Non Teaching Storage

KEY

NORTH

0 5 10 m 20 m

View scale 1:200

PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE

© Stride Treglown Limited 2017

SUITABILITY STATUS

@ A1

REVISION

REVISED BY

CHECKED BY

DRAWING NUMBER

Responsibility is not accepted for errors made by others in scaling from this drawing.
All construction information should be taken from figured dimensions only.

0mm 100mm50mm

PLANNINGPL :

www.stridetreglown.com

CLIENT

ORIGINATOR NO

 1 : 200

P29

DEER PARK SCHOOL
Wildern Academy Trust
Woodhouse Lane
Botley

Main Building - Ground Floor Plan

FR

SB

151436

KIER CONSTRUCTION

151436-STL-01-00-DR-A-ZZZZ-01001

STATUS REV DATE DESCRIPTION

PL P1 18/01/18 Draft Planning submission
PL P29 27/04/18 Issued for Planning

KEY

Large Spaces

Non-Net Area

Staff & Administration

Teaching/ Non Teaching Storage

Void

NORTH

0 5 10 m 20 m

View scale 1:200

PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE

© Stride Treglown Limited 2017

SUITABILITY STATUS

@ A1

REVISION

REVISED BY

CHECKED BY

DRAWING NUMBER

Responsibility is not accepted for errors made by others in scaling from this drawing.
All construction information should be taken from figured dimensions only.

0mm 100mm50mm

PLANNINGPL :

www.stridetreglown.com

CLIENT

ORIGINATOR NO

 1 : 200

P29

DEER PARK SCHOOL
Wildern Academy Trust
Woodhouse Lane
Botley

Sports Hall - Ground and First Floor Plans

FR

SB

151436

KIER CONSTRUCTION

151436-STL-02-ZZ-DR-A-ZZZZ-01004

 1 : 200
Ground Floor Plan

 1 : 200
First Floor Plan

STATUS REV DATE DESCRIPTION

PL P01 18/01/18 Draft Planning submission
PL P29 27/04/18 Issued for Planning

KEY

Large Spaces

Non-Net Area

Staff & Administration

Teaching/ Non Teaching Storage

Void

NORTH

0 5 10 m 20 m

View scale 1:200

PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE

© Stride Treglown Limited 2017

SUITABILITY STATUS

@ A1

REVISION

REVISED BY

CHECKED BY

DRAWING NUMBER

Responsibility is not accepted for errors made by others in scaling from this drawing.
All construction information should be taken from figured dimensions only.

0mm 100mm50mm

PLANNINGPL :

www.stridetreglown.com

CLIENT

ORIGINATOR NO

 1 : 200

P29

DEER PARK SCHOOL
Wildern Academy Trust
Woodhouse Lane
Botley

Sports Hall - Ground and First Floor Plans

FR

SB

151436

KIER CONSTRUCTION

151436-STL-02-ZZ-DR-A-ZZZZ-01004

 1 : 200
Ground Floor Plan

 1 : 200
First Floor Plan

STATUS REV DATE DESCRIPTION

PL P01 18/01/18 Draft Planning submission
PL P29 27/04/18 Issued for Planning

Sports Hall Ground Floor Plan Sports Hall First Floor Plan Site Location Plan 

Proposed Site Plan 

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

Proposed First Floor Plan

Site Visualisations

Proposed Second Floor Plan

1 2 3

a

b
c

d

e

f

g

J

h

4

5

6

7

7

8 9

10 10 10

10

10

10101011

11

11

11

11

12 12

11

13
14

14

15 16

f

f
h

woo
dh

ou
se

 la
ne

existing hous-
ing and busi-

ness park

proposed 
housing

railway line

a
b

Deer Park 
Secondary School
Woodhouse Lane, Hedge End

Proposed Site & Building Plans
Key:
a	 Main School Building
b	 Sports Hall Building
c	 MUGAs
d	 Car Park
e	 Swale
f	 SINC
g	 Bridge over SINC 
h	 Sports playing fields
J           Potential Scope to Expand

Proposed Building Plans:
1	 Dining Hall
2	 Assembly Hall
3	 Drama Studio
4	 Learning Resource Centre
5	 SEN Department
6	 Kitchen & Servery
7	 Void above Dining Hall
8	 Void above Assembly Hall
9	 Void above Drama Studio
10	 Science Labs
11	 Technology Workshops / Rooms
12	 Art Classrooms
13	 Sports Hall
14	 Changing Rooms
15	 Activity Studio	
16	 Void over Sports Hall
17         General Teaching Space
	
             Basic Teaching 
	 Plant, circulation, toilets etc
	 Staff & Administration areas
	 Stores

	 Site Boundary
	 Pedestrian Access

Not to Scale
P11534
April 2018

© Crown Copyright and database rights 
2014. All rights reserved. HCC
100019180.

Project Appraisal

17 17 17 17

17

17

171717

17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17

17

17

1717171717171717

17

17 17

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Decision Report

Decision Maker Executive Member for Education & Skills, Human Resources 
and Performance

Date: 8 May 2019

Title: Proposed opening of resource provision for pupils with 
complex social, emotional and mental health difficulties at 
Crestwood School

Report From: Director of Children’s Services 

Contact name: Christine Jones 

Tel:   01962 846245 Email: Christine.jones2@hants.gov.uk

Purpose of this Report

1. The purpose of this paper is to report on the outcome of the Public Notice to 
make the prescribed alteration to Crestwood School to include a resource 
provision for up to 14 pupils with Social, Emotional and Mental Health 
Difficulties.

2. The paper to the Executive Member for Education and Skills, Human 
Resources and performance dated 22nd February “Proposed opening of 
resource provision for pupils with complex social, emotional and mental health 
difficulties” reported on the outcome of the formal public consultation 
regarding the proposal to provide a new resourced provision for 14 children 
with complex social, emotional and mental health difficulties at Crestwood 
School, Eastleigh. No objections were received, and the Executive member 
agreed to the publication of the Public Notice. 

3. No further objections have been received following the publication of this 
notice (Appendix A). 

Recommendation 

4. That the Executive Member for Education and Skills, Human Resources and 
Performance approves that a Resource Provision for up to 14 children with 
social, emotional and mental health difficulties formally opens at Crestwood 
School on 1 June 2019.

Page 21

Agenda Item 2



Executive Summary

5. The Decision Report dated 22nd February provides all the detail related to this 
proposal and there is no further information to add to this previous report.  As 
detailed above no objections to the public notice have been received. For 
information this report is attached as Appendix A. 

6. An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed in relation to the Social, 
Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) provision, up to 14 places, at Crestwood 
School. Positive impact has been identified for disability and gender 
reassignment. All other statutory considerations have a neutral impact on the 
remaining characteristics. The full Equality Impact Assessment can be 
accessed via this link:
http://documents.hants.gov.uk/equality-impact-assessments/EIA106490023-
Proposedopeningofresourceprovisionforpupilswithcomplexsocialemotionaland
mentalhealthdifficulties.pdf

Financial Information 

7. Capital Implications

There are no capital implications for this as the school has identified space in 
the school for the resource provision and no further changes to this are 
required. 

8. Revenue Implications

Funding to support this resourced provision has been identified from within 
the existing schools block high needs budget for 2018/19 onwards.   

Page 22

http://documents.hants.gov.uk/equality-impact-assessments/EIA106490023-Proposedopeningofresourceprovisionforpupilswithcomplexsocialemotionalandmentalhealthdifficulties.pdf
http://documents.hants.gov.uk/equality-impact-assessments/EIA106490023-Proposedopeningofresourceprovisionforpupilswithcomplexsocialemotionalandmentalhealthdifficulties.pdf
http://documents.hants.gov.uk/equality-impact-assessments/EIA106490023-Proposedopeningofresourceprovisionforpupilswithcomplexsocialemotionalandmentalhealthdifficulties.pdf


REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic
growth and prosperity:

no

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent
lives:

yes

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment:

no

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities:

yes

OR

This proposal does not link to the Strategic Plan but, nevertheless, requires a 
decision because:

Other Significant Links
Links to previous Member decisions:
Title
Executive Member for Education & Skills, Human Resources 
and Performance
Proposed opening of resource provision for pupils with complex 
social, emotional and mental health difficulties
Director of Children’s Services 

Date
22nd February 
2019

Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives 
Title Date

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 23



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:

1. Equality Duty
The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 

conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it. 

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 

sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic;

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it;

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionally low.

2. Equalities Impact Assessment:

A  full Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed.

Page 24



APPENDIX A

Page 25



APPENDIX A

Page 26


	Agenda
	1 Deer Park School, Hedge End
	Plan

	2 Proposed Opening of Resource Provision for Pupils with Complex Social, Emotional and Mental Health Difficulties at Crestwood School

